
October 12, 2020 

Board of Directors 

of the 

South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency

This is to inform you the South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainability 

Agency (SFKGSA) Board of Directors special meeting will be held on 

Thursday, October 15, 2020 via ZOOM Web/Teleconference. The 

web link and call-in information are on the Agenda The board 

meeting will convene at 5:30 pm.   

As a result of the COVID-19 emergency and the Governor’s Executive 

Orders N-29-20 and N-33-20, this meeting will occur solely via remote 

presence by video and teleconference. There will not be a physical 

public access location. The Board is conducting the meeting in this 

manner to protect public health by avoiding public gatherings and 

requiring social distancing. At the same time, the Board remains 

committed to transparency. Members of the public will be able to 

listen to and watch the meeting, and comment if desired.  

The patience and cooperation of all participants is appreciated. While 

every effort has been made to streamline the experience and conduct 

meetings in the manner to which our stakeholders have grown 

accustomed, there may be technical issues and human error. We will 

attempt to promptly correct any issues that arise. 

Individuals who require special accommodations are requested to 

contact Corey McLaughlin by phone at: (559) 237-5567 or by email at: 

cmclaughlin@krcd.org. 



Board of Directors Regular Meeting  

South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SFKGSA) 
 

October 15, 2020; Meeting Convenes at 5:30 p.m.  
 

Remote Only Via Zoom 
 

Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81828058841?pwd=dEhaZ2JudURHNXFkVW8rQkJHazgwUT09  

Call-In: +1 669 900 6833 ; Meeting ID: 818 2805 8841 ; Password: 487029 

One-tap Mobile: +16699006833,,81828058841#,,,,,,0#,,487029# 
 

All items on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be deliberated upon and may be 

subject to action by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may consider agenda items in any order. 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the 

agenda packet are available for public inspection at the Kings River Conservation District, 4886 E. Jensen 

Ave., Fresno 93725 during normal business hours. 

 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 

5. AMENDMENT OF JUNE 18, 2020 MINUTES 

The Board will consider amendment of the June 18, 2020 Minutes to correct the date in Item 5 to April 

16, 2020. 

Requires simple majority approval 

 

6. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The Board will consider approval of the July 16, 2020 minutes.  

Requires simple majority approval 
 

7. DIRECTOR REPORTS 

Each Director will have the opportunity to report on meetings and other events attended during the 

prior month on behalf of the SFKGSA.  

No action will be taken. 

 

The public may address the Board of Directors on any item relevant to the GSA Authority. This is the only 

portion of the meeting where the public can comment. If you know in advance that you will want to comment, 

it will be helpful to email the Technical Moderator at cmclaughlin@krcd.org, in advance of the meeting, to 

make this known. Comments by individuals and entities will be limited to three minutes or as may be 

reasonable as determined by the conducting officer. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81828058841?pwd=dEhaZ2JudURHNXFkVW8rQkJHazgwUT09
mailto:cmclaughlin@krcd.org


8. STAFF REPORT 

Staff will report on meetings and other events attended during the prior month on behalf of the 

SFKGSA.  

No action will be taken.  

 

9. STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATIONS 

The Board will receive a report and may take action on stakeholder outreach and communications 

activities and needs.  

Action may be taken. 

 

10. SGMA IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE 

The Board will receive a report from consultants on the status of and progress on GSP implementation.  

Action may be taken. 

a. Approval of Task Order for Geosyntec authorizing the implementation of ASR Pilot Test utilizing the 

Resiliency Grant funds. Requires simple majority approval. 

b. Approval of Proposal for Geosyntec authoring the preparation of the Tulare Lake Subbasin Annual 

Report. Requires simple majority approval. 

 

11. FINANCE  

a. REPORT: The Treasurer will provide a financial update as of September 30, 2020 for the Board to 

receive. Requires simple majority approval. 

b. APPROVAL OF AUDIT CONTRACT FOR FISCAL YEAR 07/01/2019 – 06/30/2020: The Board will 

consider approval of the audit contract for the Fiscal Year starting on July 1, 2019 and ending on 

June 30, 2020, and authorizing the Treasurer to sign the contract. Action may be taken. 

 

12. RELEASE OF DRAFT GROUNDWATER DATA PROTECTION POLICY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  

The Board will be asked to consider releasing a draft Groundwater Data Protection Policy for a public 

comment period of 30 days.  

Requires simple majority approval. 

 

13. CLOSED SESSION 

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) To confer with its Legal Counsel regarding exposure to one 

matter of potential litigation. 

 

14. RECONVENT TO OPEN SESSION 

The Board will reconvene to open session and will report any action taken in Closed Session.  

 

15. NEXT MEETING DATE AND AGENDA ITEMS 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

A person with a qualifying disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 may request the SFKGSA to provide a 

disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in any public meeting of the SFKGSA. Such assistance 

includes appropriate alternative formats for the agendas and agenda packets used for any public meetings of the GSA. Requests 

for such assistance and for agendas and agenda packets shall be made in person, by telephone, facsimile, or written correspondence 

to the Kings River Conservation District, 4886 E. Jensen Ave, Fresno, CA 93725, telephone 559.237.5567, fax 559.237.5560 at least 

48 hours before a public GSA meeting. 

 



1 

South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes 
June 18, 2020 at 5:30 PM 

Lemoore City Council Chambers 

Members Present (All via Zoom): 

Joe Neves, County of Kings (Chair)  

Ceil Howe, Empire West Side Irrigation District (Vice Chair) 

John Plourde, City of Lemoore  

Charles Meyer, Stratford Irrigation District 

Members Absent: 

Scott Mercer, Stratford Public Utility District 

Others Present: 

Charlotte Gallock, Kings River Conservation District 

Corey McLaughlin, Kings River Conservation District 

Brian Trevarrow, Kings River Conservation District (Treasurer) 

Cristel Tufenkjian, Kings River Conservation District 

Rebecca Quist, Kings River Conservation District 

Amer Hussain, Geosyntec (Technical Consultant) 

Bob Anderson, Geosyntec (Technical Consultant) 

Ken Richardson (Legal Counsel) 

Antonio Solorio, WWD 

Frank Coelho. 

A. Pytlak

Regular Meeting 

Item 1: CALL TO ORDER Presenter: Chair Neves 

The meeting was called to order at 5:37 PM, and the Roll was called to establish a quorum. 

Roll Call: 

Director Neves: Present 

Director Plourde: Present 

Director Howe: Present 

Directory Meyer: Present 

Director Mercer: Absent 

Item 2: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE [DISPENSED WITH] Presenter: Chair Neves 

Item 3: ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None. 

Actions: 

None. 

Item 4: PUBLIC COMMENT Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None. 

Actions: 

None 

Item 5: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None 

1

AGENDA ITEM 5 



Page 2 of 4 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Plourde, seconded by Director Howe, and unanimously carried by roll call vote to 

approve the minutes of the June 18, 2020 meeting, as amended. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Absent 

Item 6: DIRECTOR REPORTS Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None 

Actions: 

None 

Item 7: STAFF REPORT Presenter: Charlotte Gallock 

Discussion: 

Ms. Gallock reported on a Grant award received, her attendance at various workshops and meetings; and other 

staff activities relevant to the Board.  

Consultants Amer Hussein and Bob Anderson reported on progress related to GSP implementation efforts. They 

specifically discussed comment letters sent to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) regarding the Tulare 

Lake Basin GSP, and conversations that are ongoing with those commenters; the Annual report submitted to 

DWR; and data collection efforts. A slide-show was presented regarding projects.  

Actions: 

None 

Item 8: STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATIONS Presenter: Rebecca Quist 

Discussion: 

Ms Quist reported further on the Grant award South Fork Kings GSA received, and presented her general report 

via screen-share.  

Actions: 

None 

Item 9:  FINANCIAL REPORT Presenter: Brian Trevarrow 

Discussion: 

Mr. Trevarrow reported on expenditures and the fiscal position of the GSA as of May 31, 2020. 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Plourde, seconded by Director Meyer, and unanimously carried by roll call vote to 

receive the Financial Report as of May 31, 2020, and to approve payment of bills. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Absent 

AMEND TO APRIL 16, 2020

2

AGENDA ITEM 5 

cmclaughlin
Highlight



1 

South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes 
July 16, 2020 at 5:30 PM 

Remote via Zoom 

Members Present (All via Zoom): 

Joe Neves, County of Kings (Chair)  

Ceil Howe, Jr., Empire West Side Irrigation District (Vice Chair) 

John Plourde, City of Lemoore  

Charles Meyer, Stratford Irrigation District (5:36 p.m.) 

Scott Mercer, Stratford Public Utility District (5:45 p.m.) 

Members Absent: 

Others Present: 

Charlotte Gallock, Kings River Conservation District 

Corey McLaughlin, Kings River Conservation District 

Brian Trevarrow, Kings River Conservation District (Treasurer) 

Cristel Tufenkjian, Kings River Conservation District 

Amer Hussain, Geosyntec (Technical Consultant) 

Bob Anderson, Geosyntec (Technical Consultant) 

Ken Richardson (Legal Counsel) 

Joel Kimmelshue (presenter from Land IQ) 

Frank Coelho. 

A. Pytlak

Julianne Phillips 

DOE 1 (phone participant) 

Regular Meeting 

Item 1: CALL TO ORDER Presenter: Chair Neves 

The meeting was called to order at 5:37 PM, and the Roll was called to establish a quorum. 

Roll Call: 

Director Neves: Present 

Director Plourde: Present 

Director Howe: Present 

Directory Meyer: Present 

Director Mercer: Absent 

Item 2: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE [DISPENSED WITH] Presenter: Chair Neves 

Item 3: ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None. 

Actions: 

None. 

Item 4: PUBLIC COMMENT Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None. 

Actions: 

None 

Item 5: NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

DRAFT

3

AGENDA ITEM 6



Page 2 of 5 

None. 

Actions: 

5a. and 5b.: It was moved by Director Howe, Seconded by Director Plourde, and unanimously carried to 

nominate and elect the current Chair (Director Joe Neves) and Vice Chair (Ceil Howe, Jr.) to serve as Chair and Vice Chair, 

respectively.  

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Absent 

Director Mercer: Absent 

5c.: It was moved by Director Howe, seconded by Director Neves, and unanimously carried to nominate and elect 

John Plourde to serve as Secretary.  

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye (Present at 5:36 p.m., prior to consideration of Item 5c.) 

Director Mercer: Absent 

Item 6: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Howe, seconded by Director Howe, and unanimously carried by Roll Call vote, to 

approve the minutes of the June 18, 2020 meeting. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye 

Director Mercer: Absent 

Item 7: DIRECTOR REPORTS Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

None 

Actions: 

None 

Item 8: STAFF REPORT Presenter: Charlotte Gallock 

Discussion: 

Ms. Gallock reported on items of interest to the Board from her attendance at various workshops and meetings; 

and other staff activities relevant to the Board.  

Actions: 

None 

DRAFT

4

AGENDA ITEM 6



Page 3 of 5 

Item 9: STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATIONS Presenter: Cristel Tufenkjian 

Discussion: 

Ms Tufenkjian reported on various outreach activities on behalf of the GSA. 

Actions: 

None 

Item 10: SGMA IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE Presenter: Technical Consultants 

Discussion: 

Amer Hussain reported to the Board regarding the ASR Work Plan, the Landowner Survey, Grant application and 

administration activities, cooperation with area stakeholders, and other items of note.  

Actions: 

None. 

Item 11: FINANCIAL REPORT Presenter: Brian Trevarrow 

Discussion: 

The Treasurer presented a financial update to the Board as of June 30, 2020. 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Howe, seconded by Director Plourde, and unanimously carried by a Roll Call vote, to 

approve the Treasurer’s report as of June 30, 2020. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Aye (Present at 5:45 p.m., prior to consideration of this item.) 

Item 12: LAND IQ GROUNDWATER CONSUMPTION PRESENTATION Presenter: Joel Kimmelshue 

Discussion: 

The Board received a presentation from Joel Kimmelshue regarding the technologies used by Land IQ to assess 

groundwater consumption, and asked questions of Mr. Kimmelshue afterward. 

Actions: 

None. 

Item 13: RESOLUTION 2020-03: SETTING REGULAR MEETINGS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2020 – 2021 

Presenter: Charlotte Gallock 

Discussion: 

The Board considered adoption of Resolution 2020-03, setting the regular meetings of the Board for Fiscal Year 

2020-2021. 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Howe, seconded by Director Plourde, and unanimously carried by a Roll Call vote to 

adopt Resolution 2020-03, and setting the regular meetings for the Fiscal Year 2020 – 2021 as set forth therein. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Aye 

DRAFT

5

AGENDA ITEM 6



Page 4 of 5 

Item 14: CREATION OF SFKGSA STANDING FINANCE COMMITTEE Presenter: Charlotte Gallock 

Discussion: 

Ms. Gallock described the purpose of the Committee to the Board. 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Plourde, seconded by Director Mercer, and unanimously carried by a Roll Call vote, to 

create a SFKGSA standing Finance Committee.  

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Aye 

It was further moved by Director Plourde, seconded by Director Howe, and unanimously carried by a Roll Call 

vote, to nominate and appoint Directors Neves and Plourde to the standing Finance Committee. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Aye 

Item 15: CREATION OF SFKGSA STANDING POLICY COMMITTEE Presenter: Charlotte Gallock 

Discussion: 

Ms. Gallock described the purpose of the Committee to the Board. Director Meyer noted the importance having 

landowners on this Committee, and that he would enquire of some individuals who might have interest. Director 

Plourde volunteered to serve, and Director Neves volunteered to serve until such time as a landowner member 

could be found for the Committee.  

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Plourde, seconded by Director Neves, and unanimously carried by a Roll Call vote, to 

create a SFKGSA standing Policy Committee and to appoint Directors Neves and Plourde as its members.  

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Aye 

Item 16: KRCD SURFACE ELEVATION MONITORING AGREEMENT Presenter: Charlotte Gallock 

Discussion: 

The Board received a presentation from Ms. Gallock regarding a proposed cost-sharing agreement with Kings 

River Conservation District to gather data via surface elevation monitoring and share that data with SFKGSA. Ms. 

Gallock answered questions from the Board regarding the type of data gathered and the potential uses of that 

data. 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Howe, seconded by Director Plourde, and unanimously carried by a Roll Call vote, to 

authorize staff to move forward with negotiating the agreement with advice from legal counsel.  

DRAFT

6

AGENDA ITEM 6



Page 5 of 5 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Aye 

Item 17: BRIDGET FUNDS INVOICE FROM MID-KINGS REGARDING 

TULARE LAKE BASIN GSP 

Presenter: Charlotte Gallock 

Discussion: 

Ms. Gallock presented the invoice and reasons for the invoice to the Board. 

Actions: 

It was moved by Director Plourde, seconded by Director Howe, and unanimously carried by a Roll Call vote, to 

authorize staff to pay the invoice. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Neves: Aye 

Director Plourde: Aye 

Director Howe: Aye 

Directory Meyer: Aye  

Director Mercer: Aye 

Item 18: NEXT MEETING DATE AND AGENDA ITEMS Presenter: Chair Neves 

Discussion: 

The next meeting will be August 20, 2020, at 5:30 p.m. It will likely be a remote meeting. Director Meyer asked 

whether it is possible, and how to initiate conversations regarding, how to obtain more surface water to reduce 

groundwater pumping.  

Actions: 

None 

Item 19: ADJOURNMENT Adjourned: 7:00 PM 

Respectfully submitted, 

__________________________________ 

Board Secretary 

_________________________________ approved on ___________________________ 

Joe Neves, Board Chair 

DRAFT

7

AGENDA ITEM 6



i 

ATTACHMENT A 

TASK ORDER #s 1 - 2 

2020-2021 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This Task Order is effective as of September  25, 2020 by and between South Fork Kings 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (“SFKGSA”) and Geosyntec Consultants Inc. 
(“Geosyntec”) pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the Consulting Services 
Agreement (“Agreement”), executed between the parties on August 17, 2017. The terms of the 
Agreement are incorporated in this Task Order by reference. Budget referenced in these Task 
Orders will be paid using the Resiliency Grant which was awarded to the SFKGSA as of 
September 14, 2020 and will be strictly used for the implementation and support of the 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery Task Order 9, as part of Geosyntec’s Fiscal Year 2020 Scope 
of Work with SFKGSA signed on June 24, 2020. 

1) The professional services to be performed under these Task Orders include the
following:

2020-2021 Supply Enhancement Tasks 

Task Order 1 – Pilot Test Design and Modeling 

This task covers well modifications and any additional modeling needed to prepare the 
ASR pilot well for the field testing. This task includes completion of the following: 

• Well modifications to prepare well for pump test and pilot test. Modifications
include sounding tube, temporary piping, and injection tube installation.

• Purchase and installment of materials needed for Pilot Test design included
temporary piping, flow meters, and butterfly valves.

• Oversight of well modifications and installations.
• Finalization of pilot test design.

Task Order 2 – Field Testing and Analysis 

This task includes activities and materials required for the Pilot Test as well as field or 
laboratory analysis needed for the Pilot Test: 

• Project and field management to coordinate with vendors, regulatory agencies and
clients.

• Oversight of field testing, monitoring and sampling for the pump test.
• Analysis of water quality samples collected during constant rate and step-

drawdown testing.
• Rental, purchase, or request of services needed to complete pump test including

video logging and field instrumentations.

8

AGENDA ITEM 10a.



ii 

2) The project schedule is as follows:

These Task Orders covers work from October2020 to June 2021, or completion of the 
project. 

3) The Compensation to be paid to Consultant for the performance of the Services under
these Task Orders is as follows:

These Task Orders authorize on a time and materials basis for an estimated total fee of 
$80,000 broken into the following tasks: 

• Task Order 1 – Pilot Test Design and Modeling – $30,000
• Task Order 2 – Field Testing and Analysis – $50,000

4) The Deliverable to be provided under these Task Orders are as follows:

• Task Order 1 – Preparations to well for Pump Test and upcoming Pilot Test
• Task Order 2 – Completed pump test.

Assumptions 

The fees listed above include support from our sub-contractor including Westside Pump, etc. 

SOUTH FORK KINGS GROUNDWATER GEOSYNTEC CONSULTANTS 
 SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

By: By: 

Name: Name:  Amer Hussain

Title: Title: Principal

Date: Date:

9

AGENDA ITEM 10a.



5084 N. Fruit Ave, Suite 103 
Fresno, CA  93711 

PH 559.228.9086 
www.geosyntec.com 

September 28, 2020 

Ms. Charlotte Gallock 
South Fork Kings GSA 
c/o Kings River Conservation District 
4886 E. Jensen Ave. 
Fresno, CA 93725  
Subject: Proposal to Prepare 

Water Year 2020 Annual Report 
Tulare Lake Subbasin  

Dear Ms. Gallock: 

Geosyntec Consultants Inc. (Geosyntec) has prepared this proposal for the Tulare Lake Subbasin 
(TLSB) Water Year (WY) 2020 Annual Report from October 2019 to September 2020. This 
proposal outlines report preparation and discusses monitoring activities the Groundwater 
Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) have committed to in the TLSB Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
(GSP) under Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). An Annual Report 
summarizing groundwater conditions and implementation practices for the WY must be submitted 
yearly to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) by April 1st to remain in compliance with 
SGMA following adoption of the GSP.  

Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations §356 outlines the annual report’s procedural and 
substantive requirements and must include the following components from the preceding water 
year: 

o Executive summary with location map depicting GSP coverage – §356.2 (a)
o Groundwater elevation data from each GSA’s monitoring network displayed on a contour

map and in historic hydrographs – §356.2 (b) (1)
o Groundwater extractions categorized by water use sector within each GSA – §356.2 (b) (2)
o Surface water supply (used or available for use) described by annual volume and supply

sources – §356.2 (b) (c)
o Total water use summarized by water use sector and water source type – §356.2 (b) (4)
o Groundwater storage change with maps and graphical representation of historic, current,

and cumulative groundwater storage changes – §356.2 (b) (5)
o Description of progress towards implementation of the GSP which includes interim

milestones, project and management implementation from WY 2019 – §356.2 (c)
The scope of services listed below describe the tasks necessary to comply with the annual report 
requirements. Fees associated with each task are provided in Exhibit A. Our Fee Schedule is 
included as Exhibit B.  

10

AGENDA ITEM 10b.



Ms Charlotte Gallock 
September 28, 2020 
Page 2 

Task 1: Data Collection and Coordination 

Geosyntec will coordinate with GSAs to acquire necessary data for the annual report. Data 
requested from the GSAs include, but are not limited to:  

o Groundwater elevations (ground surface and reference point elevations and depth to water
measurements);

o Monthly surface water deliveries from each GSA’s respective canal system;
o Monthly values of pumped groundwater from various sectors (Agricultural, Industrial,

Municipal, Native Vegetation, Urban); and
o Monthly values of groundwater recharge.

Geosyntec will acquire and report on the following data to meet the annual report requirements 
which include, but are not limited to: 

o WY2020 cropping pattern data using Cropscape;
o Collect groundwater quality data using the State Water Resources Control Board

(SWRCB) Division of Drinking Water (DDW)’s Electronic Data Transfer (EDT) as well
as other existing programs collecting water quality data as listed in the GSP;

o Calculate groundwater pumping, storage, and subsidence within the GSAs and Subbasin;
and

o Collect land subsidence data from existing programs (KRCD, Lemoore, Central Valley
Spatial Reference Network, California High-Speed Rail Authority, California Aqueduct,
California Department of Transportation, Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District,
DWR InSAR).

Data collected for WY2020 will use the same sources as WY2019 to allow better comparison for 
each annual report, this includes data programs such as Cropscape and DWR InSAR. If Geosyntec 
is unable to retrieve data from a GSA’s respective land subsidence or water quality existing 
program due to lack accessibility, the GSA may be requested to retrieve and submit the data to 
Geosyntec. 

Task 2: Update DMS 

Geosyntec will update the Data Management System (DMS) with data collected for WY2020 
under the assumption that Provost & Pritchard (P&P) will provide Geosyntec a copy of the most 
recent update of the DMS. The updated DMS is expected to include all data received for WY2019 
and Spring 2020 water level measurements that have been provided by the GSAs to P&P and have 
been imported to SGMA Portal by P&P.  

Task 3: Annual Report Preparation 

11

AGENDA ITEM 10b.



Ms Charlotte Gallock 
September 28, 2020 
Page 3 

Geosyntec will compile and evaluate the data retrieved from Task 2 and prepare an annual report 
which summarizes groundwater conditions and implementation practices within the five GSAs. 
Figures, tables, and text will be prepared by Geosyntec as a rough draft completed three weeks 
before the Annual Report deadline. This will allow the GSAs time to review the draft and submit 
comments for possible revisions to the report. The final version of the WY2020 Annual Report 
will be submitted to DWR by uploading to SGMA Portal no later than April 1, 2021. 

CLOSURE 

Geosyntec appreciates the opportunity to serve TLSB and for allowing us to provide a proposal 
for preparing the WY2020 Annual Report. If you find this proposal acceptable, please sign below 
to authorize us to proceed. Should you have any questions or require additional information, please 
contact Amer Hussain at (559) 228-9086.  

Sincerely, 

Amer A. Hussain, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 

Enclosure:    
Exhibit A: Estimated Fees  
Exhibit B: Geosyntec Fee Schedule 

By its signature below and/or authorizing Geosyntec Consultants to proceed in accordance with 
this Proposal South Fork kings GSA accepts and agrees to the Services, Schedule and 
Compensation described above and the attached terms and conditions.  

Name Signiture 

12

AGENDA ITEM 10b.



Ms Charlotte Gallock 
September 28, 2020 
Page 4 

Exhibit A – Estimated Fees for Annual Report Preparation 

Task Description T&M not to exceed 
1) Data Collection &

Coordination
• Acquire data from

various GSAs and
associated existing
programs

$5,000 

2) Update DMS • Spring and Fall 2020
WLs

• 2020 Water Quality
• Subsidence

$4,000 

3) Annual Report
Preparation

• Compile and evaluate
data acquired for each
GSA and provide draft
to Subbasin for review
before submittal.

• Submit the Annual
Report by 4/1/21.

$20,000 

Time & Material not to Exceed:1 $29,000.00 

1 Technical services requested by the Subbasin that are outside of this proposal scope will be billed as time and 
materials upon receiving approval from the Subbasin. 

13

AGENDA ITEM 10b.



Ms Charlotte Gallock 
September 28, 2020 
Page 5 

Exhibit B: Geosyntec Fee Schedule 
GEOSYNTEC CONSULTANTS: 2020 RATE SCHEDULE 

Rate/Hour 

Staff Professional $123 
Senior Staff Professional $143 
Professional $164 
Project Professional $186 
Senior Professional $210 
Principal $230 
Senior Principal $250 

Technician I $  62 
Technician II $  67 
Senior Technician I $  72 
Senior Technician II $  80 
Site Manager I $  89 
Site Manager II $  99 
Construction Manager I $113 
Construction Manager II $120 

Designer $130 
Senior Drafter/Senior CADD Operator $116 
Drafter/CADD Operator/Artist $102 
Project Administrator $  67 
Clerical $  53 

Direct Expenses Cost plus 10% 
Subcontract Services Cost plus 12% 

Specialized Computer Applications (per hour) $   12 
Personal Automobile (per mile) Current Gov’t Rate 
Photocopies (per page) $  .08 

Rates are provided on a confidential basis and are client and project specific. 
Unless otherwise agreed, rates will be adjusted annually based on a minimum of the Producer Price Index for 

Engineering Services (PPI). 
Rates for field equipment, health and safety equipment, and graphical supplies presented upon request. 

Construction management fee presented upon request. 

14

AGENDA ITEM 10b.



15

AGENDA ITEM 11a. 



16

AGENDA ITEM 11a. 



17

AGENDA ITEM 11a. 



18

AGENDA ITEM 11a. 



19

AGENDA ITEM 11a. 



20

AGENDA ITEM 11b.



21

AGENDA ITEM 11b.



22

AGENDA ITEM 11b.



23

AGENDA ITEM 11b.



1 

DRAFT – 10-2-2020 

South Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Groundwater Data Protection Policy 

Policy No. 2020-01 

Purpose of Policy 

The purpose of this Groundwater Data Protection Policy (“Policy”) is to 
provide property owners within the jurisdiction of the South Fork Kings 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency (“SFK GSA”) with assurance that all 
groundwater information and data that they agree to provide to the SFK GSA will 

be held and remain confidential to the maximum extent allowable by law. 

Scope of Policy 

This Policy applies to all groundwater data currently in the possession of 

the SFK GSA or that the SFK GSA will acquire in the future. 

Background Information Supporting Policy 

The SFK GSA is a joint powers authority formed pursuant to the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act (Gov’t Code section 6500 et seq.) and acts pursuant to 

that authority. Its primary mission is to sustainably manage, protect and 
maintain the groundwater resources within its jurisdiction consistent with the 

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (“SGMA”) for the benefit of 
water users within its jurisdiction. The SFK GSA is located in the Tulare Lake 
Subbasin, Basin No. 5-22.12 as identified in the Department of Water Resources’ 

(“DWR”) Bulletin 118, and designated therein as being presently in “critical 
overdraft.”  The SFK GSA includes coordination with the other Groundwater 
Sustainability Agencies (“GSAs”) within and adjacent to the boundaries of the 

Tulare Lake Subbasin, as well as with groundwater management activities 
throughout the region. 

Water Code section 10725.2 and the SFK GSA Joint Powers Agreement 
authorizes the SFK GSA Board of Directors is authorized to adopt policies, rules, 

regulations, ordinances and resolutions for the purpose of complying with SGMA. 
The SFK GSA, in carrying out its mission, has need to acquire confidential, 

technical and proprietary groundwater information and data (“Confidential 
Information”), including, but not limited to: 

• Well location.

• Ground surface elevation at well location, including elevation datum

• Depth  to  groundwater  readings  from  1960s  to  present  as  available
per  well.

24

AGENDA ITEM 12



2 

DRAFT – 10-2-2020 

• Water surface elevation.

• Well driller's logs.

• Well specifications/information (perforated intervals, seal depth, pumping
capacity, water quality, etc.).

• Agricultural practices (crop type, irrigation method (flood or drip), surface
or groundwater application, etc.).

• Irrigation facility information (location, dimension, flow direction, etc.).

• Subsidence data.

The SFK GSA intends to compile, manage and maintain the Confidential

Information in a manner to ensure confidentiality. However, the SFK GSA cannot 
be required to maintain confidentiality for any data or information that is in the 
public domain at the time of the disclosure. 

The SFK GSA’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan (“GSP”) necessitates that 
it has and plans to continue pursuing investigations of groundwater conditions 

within its jurisdiction, and in that process will necessarily develop and/or 
acquire Confidential Information. The SFK GSA desires to ensure that the 

Confidential Information that may be disclosed to it is treated in the strictest 
confidence consistent with the requirements of the law. Where such Confidential 
Information is not general public knowledge and is being disclosed on a limited 

basis under the terms and conditions of this Policy, the SFK GSA will take every 
action within its legal authority to main confidentiality, including but not limited 

to entering into a data privacy agreement made directly with a property owners or 
their agents. 

The SFK GSA is a California public agency, and therefore is subject to the 
requirements of the California Public Records Act (Gov’t Code §§ 6250 et seq.) 
(“CPRA”). The fundamental intent of the CPRA is the concept that access to 

information concerning the conduct of the people’s business is a fundamental 
and necessary right of every person in the state. The SFK GSA Board of Directors 

acknowledge and understand that the CPRA includes a certain level of tension 
with the intent and the goals of this Policy. Nevertheless, in maximum 
furtherance of the goals of this Policy and compliance with the CPRA, the 

following noteworthy exemptions to the CPRA do coincide with the goals and 
intent of this Policy, including: 

• Geological and geophysical data. Gov’t Code § 6254(e).

• Disclosure of a public record to a public agency pursuant to an agreement
to treat the material as confidential. Gov’t Code § 6254.5(e).

• Utility Usage Data. Gov’t Code § 6254.16.

• Any information where, based on the particular facts of the case, the

25

AGENDA ITEM 12



3 

DRAFT – 10-2-2020 

public interest served by not disclosing the record clearly outweighs the 
public interest served by disclosure of the record. Gov’t Code section 

6255. 

When the SFK GSA receives a CPRA request which implicates any 
Confidential Information, it will seek to maintain that confidentiality to the 
maximum extent allowable under the law, and will provide the submitting 

property owner with notice of the scope and nature of the request. 

Policy Implementation 

The SFK GSA, by and through its employees and agents, shall take the 

following actions consistent with the intent of this Policy. 

1. Any groundwater data containing Confidential Information provided to the
SFK GSA under a claim of confidentiality shall be marked by the SFK GSA
as confidential.

2. All Confidential Information submitted to the SFK GSA shall be pursuant
to a confidentiality agreement for SFK GSA to treat the information and
data submitted pursuant to same as confidential.

3. The SFK GSA shall maintain all groundwater data as confidential,
pursuant to the claims at the time of submission. Only persons

authorized in writing by an authorized representative of the SFK GSA
shall obtain the Confidential Information on behalf of the SFK GSA and

only for the purposes that are consistent with this Policy and existing law.

4. The SFK GSA may assert any applicable exclusion or privilege to prevent
disclosure of the Confidential Information subject to this Policy, either on
its own behalf or on behalf of a landowner.

5. The SFK GSA may not disclose any data to the public without first
providing notice to and obtaining the express authorization of the
submitting landowner, unless otherwise authorized pursuant to a consent

authorization and/or other agreement between the SFK GSA and the
consenting landowner.

6. The SFK GSA shall immediately notify a submitting landowner of any
request for information from a member of the public in order to allow

sufficient time to assert any exclusions or privileges that may be available
by law.

7. If any information is required to be disclosed pursuant to law or court
order, the SFK GSA shall work to comply with the disclosure request while
limiting the disclosure in a manner to preserve the confidential and

proprietary nature of the Confidential Information, as allowed by existing
law.

8. The SFK GSA may disclose Confidential Information to a public agency

26

AGENDA ITEM 12



4 

DRAFT – 10-2-2020 

only if: (1) the public agency requires the information to perform its legally 
mandated duties; and (2) the public agency agrees in writing to protect 

the confidentiality of the Confidential Information and to limit disclosure 
to only those persons who are employed or retained by the agency and 

who have signed an agreement to maintain the confidentiality of the 
records. 

27

AGENDA ITEM 12


	AGENDA
	ITEM 5: Amend June Minutes
	ITEM 6: Approve July Minutes
	ITEM 10a.: Task Orders
	ITEM 10b.: Annual Report Proposal
	ITEM 11a.: Financial Report
	ITEM 11b.: Audit Contract/Engagment Letter
	Untitled



